2.13 Cultural, Archeological and Historical Resources
Eklutna is a Tanaina Athapascan village.  Eklutna is an anglicized version of the Tanaina word “Eydlytnu” meaning “by several objects river” (Chandonnet 1985).   Eklutna has been inhabited for around 800 years with Russian Orthodox missionaries arriving in the 1840s (Alaska Division of Community & Regional Affairs, Community Database).  In 1870 the Old Saint Nicholas Church (ANC-00004) was built to serve the community.  The Alaska Railroad was established at Eklutna in the early 1900s.  By the 1920s southcentral Alaska was growing and the need for reliable electricity was rising.  Because of this need the Eklutna hydroelectric project began.  The project was completed and started supplying Anchorage with power on December 8, 1929 (Simonds 1995).  Due to fast growing population, the “Eklunta Project” began in the 1950s to supply more hydroelectric power to the population.

The Eklunta town and lower river area has 26 cultural properties listed in the Alaska Heritage Resources Survey (AHRS).  These properties include ANC-00004 (Old St. Nicholas Church, Eklutna Chapel); ANC-00008 (Eklutna); ANC-00080 (Eklutna River Railroad Bridge);ANC-00091 (Eklunta Railroad Station); ANC-00118 (Eklutna Power Plant); ANC-00275 (A.C. Warehouse);  ANC-00276 (Watson’s Roadhouse); ANC-00294 (Mike Alex Cabin); ANC-00437 (Eklutna Grave Sites); ANC-00757 (F. Hunt Cabin); ANC-00831 (1950s Eklutna Power Project Substation Reed); ANC-00832 (Eklutna Power Line Reed to Anchorage); ANC-00852 (Eklutna House Pit Site); ANC-00907 (FAA Radio Transmission Facility); ANC-01112 (Eklutna River Bridge); ANC-01162 (Residence Complex); ANC-01163 (Residence Complex); ANC-01330 (Power Line – Eklutna to Ship Cr); ANC-01948; ANC-01973 (Old Eklutna Power Diversion Dam); ANC-01974 (Intake Structure); ANC-01976 (Power Tunnel); ANC-01982 (Power Tunnel Complex); ANC-01991 (Eklutna Power Plant Tunnel); ANC-01992 (Eklutna Power Plant Penstock); and ANC-01993 (Eklutna Power Plant Tailrace). 

The Eklutna House Pits Site (ANC-00852) is an area along an old stream bed of the Eklutna River.  This site consists of three two-room house pits and one 14 foot by 18 foot single room house pit.  The site predates the homestead at this location dated to 1916.  It is near NBA and the railroad granite mining operation northeast of the railroad and Eklutna road intersection.  No determination of eligibility has been made for the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). Due to disturbance at the Eklutna House Pit Site it probably used to be apart of the Residence Complex (ANC-01162).  The residence complex consists of one three-room house with surrounding activity areas, cache pits, and a larger storage pit.  It is within the boundaries of the modern Eklutna Village adjacent to the railroad tracks.  Another Residence Complex (ANC-01163) is early historic, possibly protohistoric, and consists of the remains of a two-room house.  One room has been partially destroyed.  There are no visible structural elements on the surface.  This residence complex is within the boundaries of the modern Eklutna Village, but outside of the area modern structures are located.  

The Old St. Nicholas Church (ANC-00004) is a squared log building constructed in 1870 that overlooks the Eklutna Grave Sites (ANC-00437).  The Old St. Nicholas Church is a registered property in the NRHP.  It was registered in 1972.  Eklutna Grave Sites (ANC-00437) consist of 20 to 30 graves.  Many of the graves have spirit houses.  Eklutna (ANC-00008) became a permanent village in the late 1800s with the population becoming more stable when the Alaska Railroad established a station in Eklutna in 1918.  

A 1906 Alaska Central Railroad map identifies A.C. Warehouse (ANC-00275).  The AHRS states that this property is associated with the Iditarod Nation Historic Trail.  No NRHP determination of eligibility has been made for this property.  A 1914 Alaska Engineering Commission map shows two buildings at H. Watsons’s Roadhouse (ANC-00276).   The AHRS states that this property is associated with the Iditarod Nation Historic Trail.  No NRHP determination of eligibility has been made for this property.  Across from ANC-00004 is the Mike Alex Cabin (ANC-00294).  This cabin is a rectangular sing-story log and frame cabin, which is considered a rare Athapaskan cabin style.  The property was registered in the NRHP in 1982.  The F. Hunt cabin was shown on a 1914 survey map in an area believed to be claimed by George Palmer.  The AHRS states that the cabin has probably eroded into the water and no determination of eligibility has been made.  

The Eklutna River Railroad Bridge (ANC-00080) consists of one 80 foot through-girder made by the American Bridge Company and no determination of eligibility for the NRHP has been made for this property.  The Eklutna Railroad Station (ANC-00091) was reported as a two-story building constructed in the 1940s, but the present condition of the station is unknown.  No determination of eligibility for the NRHP has been made.  ANC-01112 is the Eklutna River Bridge which is a three-span steel arch bridge built in 1935.  The bridge was originally one-lane, but was expanded to two lanes between 1950 and 1952.  This property is at mile 0.7 on the Old Glenn Highway.  ANC-01112 has been determined eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.  

In the 1920s the Eklutna Power Plant (ANC-00118) was built.  The existing structure is a 61 foot by 27 foot concrete walled powerhouse and was NRHP registered in 1980.  There was a power line from Eklutna to Anchorage consisting of 600 poles spaced every 240 feet as close to the railroad as possible.

By the 1950s a new hydroelectric project called the “Eklutna Project” was in the works.  The Eklutna Power Project Substation Reed (ANC-00831) is next to the 1920s Eklutna Power Plant and the structures were determined eligible for the NRHP in 1996.  There are power lines 26 miles long from Reed to Anchorage (ANC-00832) which consists of transmission lines elevated on T-frame and H-frame wooden towers.  The power lines were determined eligible for the NRHP in 1996.  

Between the 1940s and 1970s the FAA Radio Transmission Facility (ANC-00907) provided navigational and weather information to aircraft.  The facility is on top of a small hill overlooking the Knik Arm.  Most of the facility has be removed and all that remains are creosote covers poles on the ground, a collection of milled lumber, and a concentration of cans on the southern edge of the hill.  There are also two culturally modified trees at the top of the hill.

IMPACTS TO CULTURAL RESOURCES

The project area is the riverbed between the Eklutna River Railroad Bridge (ANC-00080) and the Eklutna River Bridge (ANC-01112).  ANC-01112 is the Eklutna River Bridge which is a three-span steel arch bridge built in 1935.  The bridge was originally one-lane, but was expanded to two lanes between 1950 and 1952.  This property is at mile 0.7 on the Old Glenn Highway.  ANC-01112 has been determined eligible for the National Register of Historic Places.  The northern part of the project area around ANC-01112 was surveyed by Lobdell (1984) and no cultural properties were observed.   Lobdell (1984) also surveyed for prehistoric properties on the north side of Eklutna River by foot and the south side by foot and air from the project area to Eklunta Lake.  The survey found no properties.  ANC-00080 is the Eklutna River Railroad Bridge which consists of one 80 foot through-girder made by the American Bridge Company.  This property is at mile 140.8 of the Alaska Railroad.  ANC-0080 has not been determined eligible for the National register.  A determination of eligibility will need to be made for ANC-00080.  If there is an effect to an eligible or registered cultural property the Corps will either need to minimize, avoid, or mitigate the effects.  

Upstream is ANC-01973, the Old Eklutna Power Diversion Dam, from the 1920s Eklutna hydroelectric project.  The dam was used to divert water from Eklutna River into a tunnel through Goat Mountain.  The arch dam structure was concrete with the bottom measuring 8 feet thick and the top 5 feet thick.  ANC-01973 is registered on the National Register of Historic Places for its association with the first hydroelectric project in Southcentral Alaska.  It is located on the north bank of the Eklunta River about 3 miles upstream.  The tunnel (ANC-01991) was used to transport the water through Goat Mountain to the penstock (ANC-01992).  The tunnel is 1800 feet long, 7 feet wide, and 8 feet high and it took crews consisting of five men working around the clock from December 1928 to April 1929 to complete two-thirds of the tunnel.  ANC-001991 is registered on the National Register of Historic Places for its association with the hydroelectric project.  
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